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The Christian Specht building, 1884, is a three-story cast iron front 
commercial structure designed by Dufrene and Mendelssohn, Omaha architects, 
and manufactured by Specht f s Western Cornice Works. The building has a 
narrow 22-foot frontage facing south on Douglas Street in downtown Omaha.

The galvanized iron front is designed in the Renaissance Revival style, 
Northern Italian mode, a style popular in cast-iron facades of the period. 
The first-floor facade is very open with large windows and a center double 
door, all flanked by columns or pilasters. The upper levels each have 
tKfee window bays separated by Corinthian columns, with"pilasters strongly 
defining the corners. A cornice tops the building. Originally, the cornice 
was surmounted by a parapet but this has been removed. The two upper 
stories of the front are currently out of line and leaning to the west.

Aside from the iron front, the building is constructed of Omaha 
pressed brick with wood floors and joists. The floor plan is entirely 
open on all three levels, with a stairway at the rear. The only modern 
change has been the installation of an elevator. The building is presently 
used as a warehouse.
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Dufrene and Mendelssohn, Omaha 
BUILDER: Western Cornice Works.

The Christian Specht building, 1884, is the only extant cast-iron 
front building known in Nebraska and one of a very few ever built in the 
state. Designed by Dufrene and Mendelssohn, an Omaha architectural firm, 
the front was cast by Specht's own Western Cornice Works.

With the coming of the Industrial Revolution, iron was introduced as 
a building material and first used in 18th-century England. Iron supports 
allowed for an open floor plan and for more windows. Those reasons, plus 
the belief that iron was fireproof, encouraged the growing use of iron 
throughout Europe in the first half of the 19th century. European interest 
in exposed iron waned after the 1850 f s with the realization that iron was 
not fireproof.

For the next several decades, iron was chiefly used in American 
commercial facades. James Bogardus erected the first cast-iron front in 
1848, and Henry Bessemer invented the process whereby iron could be 
modeled into large-scale building components in 1855. Cast-iron fronts 
became increasingly popular because the components could be mass-produced 
and erected quickly without losing any of the ornate Renaissance Revival 
style. Large windows and an open floor plan, as noted previously, were 
also important advantages.

Records suggest that only three cast-iron front buildings were 
constructed in Omaha and none are presently known in the rest of the 
state. All three were built in the 1881 to 1884 period. Building 
components and details made of metal, i.e. cornices, columns, window 
caps and roofing, that the Western Cornice Works usually produced, are 
common in Omaha and throughout eastern Nebraska. One or two-story 
commercial buildings often have a cast iron column or two or metal 
window frames; however, an entire storefront of cast-iron is most unusual.

The Specht building in its style, narrow frontage, window area and 
open floor plan, reflects the typical treatment of a cast-iron front 
building of the period. The Renaissance Revival style, Northern Italian 
mode was popular for cast-iron; its three-dimensional ornateness could be 
easily mass-produced. As cast-iron could not span wide distances, this 
example has the typical narrow front. To let in maximum light, the first 
story is taller than the upper levels and has the most window area.
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The Western Cornice Works, owned by Christian Specht, manufactured 
galvanized iron cornices, metal dormer windows, finials, window caps, 
tin and iron roofing and a metallic skylight patented by Specht. Born 
in Berlin in 1842, Specht operated a metal cornice factory in Cincinnati 
from 1861 until 1880, when he moved to Omaha. During the extensive 
building boom of the 1880's in Omaha his business was very successful. 
The Western Cornice Works was the largest of three cornice-making firms 
in Omaha during the decade. Erected in the fourth year of the-, firm-is 
operation, the building was occuped by the business for only one year, and 
was then subsequently used by Alien Brothers, grocers. Specht was involved 
in politics, serving four years as Omaha City Councilman and filling a 
partial term in the Nebraska Legislature in 1890. Christian Specht and his 
sons, Henry, William, and James (also cornice-makers) appear to have moved 
from Omaha in 1895, as no records were found after this date.

The Omaha architectural firm of Dufrene and Mendelssohn designed the 
Specht building. A. R. Dufrene had worked as an architect in Nebraska 
since 1867. After working as a carpenter and joiner in Detroit, he 
studied architecture in the office of W. W. Pfeiffer of Portland, Oregon. 
Working with T. B. Borst from 1867-1870, they designed all the Union 
Pacific Railroad stations during the construction of the transcontinental 
railroad. During the 1870 f s, Dufrene practiced alone in Omaha, designing 
some of the most prominent residential and commercial buildings in the 
city. In 1880, Louis Mendelssohn moved from Detroit to enter into part­ 
nership with Dufrene. Mendelssohn, born in Berlin, had practiced architecture 
for nine years in Detroit. The partnership continued until 1885. At 
that time, Mendelssohn left and entered a partnership with George L. Fisher. 
The firm became Mendelssohn, Fisher and Lawrie in 1887 when Harry Lawrie 
joined the firm. The firm was prominent in Nebraska for many years (see 
National Register nomination Old University Library, Lincoln, Nebraska).
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